Uni-President Enterprises Corp.

Rules of Procedure for Shareholders' Meeting

Amended 23 July 2021

- I. These rules of procedure govern the Company's shareholders' meeting.
- II. The term "shareholders" as set forth herein denotes the shareholders themselves and the proxies authorized by shareholders.
- III. A shareholder shall attend a shareholders' meeting on the basis of the attendance card, signin card, or other supporting document; Solicitors soliciting proxy forms shall also bring identification documents for verification.

The total number of shares present at the meeting will be calculated based on the attendance cards submitted as a substitute for sign-in, plus the number of shares exercising the voting power in writing or through means of electronic transmission.

- IV. In a shareholders' meeting, the participation and vote shall be counted on the grounds of the number of shares.
- V. A shareholders' meeting shall be held at the place where the Company is headquartered or a place convenient to shareholders for participation. A shareholders' meeting shall start not earlier than 9:00 a.m. or later than 3:00 p.m.

The Company shall set out the time for accepting the meeting registration, the location where the registration will take place and other special notes in the meeting notice.

Registration by shareholders shall start at least 30 minutes prior to the commencement of the meeting; the registration area shall be clearly marked with clear signs and be attended by sufficient and qualified staff.

VI. Unless otherwise provided in laws, the shareholders' meeting shall be called by the Board of Directors and chaired by the Chairman of the Board. Where the Chairman of the Board fails to exercise his authority with justified reasons, the Vice Chairman of the Board may be his proxy. Where no Vice Chairman has been appointed or the Vice Chairman fails to exercise his authority with justified reasons too, the Chairman shall designate one director to be his proxy. Where no such designee is designated, the chairperson shall be elected out of the directors. Where the shareholders' meeting is called by any person entitled to hold the meeting other than the Board of Directors, the chairperson of the meeting shall be assumed by the person.

If there are more than two conveners, the chairperson shall be elected from the conveners.

If one of the directors is appointed to act as the meeting chair in accordance with the preceding paragraph, he or she shall have served as a director for more than 6 months and has a sound knowledge of the company's financial and business status. The same applies to the situation where the representative of an institutional director is elected to act as the meeting chair.

- VII. The Company may designate lawyers, CPAs or relevant personnel appointed by the Company to attend the shareholders' meeting.
- VIII. The company shall, from the time of registration, record the registration process, proceedings of the meeting and the voting and vote counting process in their entirety in audio or video. The aforesaid recording shall be retained for at least 1 year, if, however, a shareholder files a lawsuit pursuant to Article 189 of the Company Act, the recording shall be retained until the conclusion of the litigation.

IX. The chairman shall call the meeting to order at the appointed meeting time and disclose information concerning the number of nonvoting shares and number of shares represented by shareholders attending the meeting.

The chairman may, nevertheless, announce a deferment of the meeting if the shareholders present in person and through a proxy do not make the quorum up to a half of the total issued shares. The total of the deferments shall exceed the maximum of twice. The total time in the deferments shall not exceed one hour. In the event that the shareholders present in person and through a proxy do not make the specified quorum but represent more than one-third of the total issued shares, quasi-decisions may be resolved in accordance with Article 175, Paragraph 10f the Company Law.

In the event that the shareholders present in person and through a proxy represent more than a half of the total issued shares before the shareholders' meeting adjourns, the chairman may bring the quasi-decisions so resolved to the meeting for resolution afresh in accordance with Article 174 of the Company Law.

X. Where the shareholders' meeting is assembled by the Board, the Board shall stipulate the meeting agenda. The related motions (including extemporary motions and amendments to the original motions) shall be subject to a vote. The shareholders' meeting shall progress in accordance with an arranged agenda, which can only be changed by the resolution of the shareholders' meeting.

The provision set forth in the preceding paragraph shall apply in the event that a shareholders' meeting is convened by a person beyond the board of directors.

The chairman shall not announce adjournment of the meeting unless duly resolved in the meeting until the agenda (including occasional (extemporaneous) motions) set forth in the two preceding paragraphs is concluded.

In the event that the chairman breaches these Rules of the Shareholders' Meeting by announcing adjournment of the meeting contrary to what specified above, the present shareholders may elect a new chairman through a majority vote. The chairman so elected shall continually preside over the meeting.

XI. A shareholder shall, before obtaining the floor in the meeting, fill out the floor note and remark thereon the key subjects to be spoken, the account number of shareholder (or code of the participation certificate) and name of shareholder. The chairman shall determine the order of the floor.

A shareholder who submits the floor note but does not actually speak up in the meeting is deemed having not spoken up in the meeting. In case of a discrepancy between what was remarked on the floor note and what was actually said, the contents actually said shall prevail.

Where a present shareholder exercises the floor and speaks up in the meeting, other shareholders shall not speak to interfere unless agreed upon by the chairman and the speaking shareholder. The chairman shall ban such interference, if any.

XII. For a same issue, each shareholder shall not speak more than twice and shall not speak more than five minutes in each floor unless approved by the chairman.

The chairman may ban such shareholder from speaking if he/she breaches the provision set forth in the preceding paragraph or speaks beyond the specified range.

XIII. Where a judicial (corporate) person is consigned to participate in a shareholders' meeting, such judicial (corporate) person may appoint only one representative to participate in the meeting.

Where a judicial (corporate) person shareholder appoints two or more representatives to participate in a shareholders' meeting, only one representative may speak up for the same issue.

XIV.After a present shareholder completes the floor, the chairman may reply in person or

through an appointee.

- XV. The chairman may announce discontinuation of the discussion process and proceed with the voting process when the discussion is considered up to the extent for resolution, also arrange sufficient time for voting.
- XVI. Upon voting for an issue, the chairman shall appoint the monitor(s) and calculator(s). The monitors shall only be appointed from the shareholders.

Voting for a resolution or vote counting shall be conducted in public at the place of the shareholders meeting, and voting results shall be reported on-site immediately and recorded in writing including the number of votes, the list of elected candidates and the number of votes upon which each candidate was elected, and the names of directors not elected and number of votes they received.

XVII. When a meeting is in progress, the chair may announce a break based on time considerations. If a force majeure event occurs, the chair may rule the meeting temporarily suspended and announce a time when, in view of the circumstances, the meeting will be resumed.

If the meeting venue is no longer available for continued use and not all of the items (including extraordinary motions) on the meeting agenda have been addressed, the shareholders meeting may adopt a resolution to resume the meeting at another venue.

A resolution may be adopted at a shareholders meeting to defer or resume the meeting within 5 days in accordance with Article 182 of the Company Act.

- XVIII.Unless otherwise prescribed in the Company Law and Articles of Incorporation, decisions in the shareholders' meeting shall be resolved by a majority vote of the attending shareholders.
- XIX. The voting process shall be conducted on a case-by-case basis and the outcome of pros, cons and abstentions should be input into the Market Observation Post System (MOPS). In case any amendment or substitute is posed for the same issue, the chairman shall fix the process of resolution along with the original issues. If any issue among them is resolved, other issues are deemed vetoed and no further voting process is required.
- XX. Staff handling administrative affairs of a shareholders meeting shall wear identification cards.

The chair may direct the proctors or security personnel to help maintain order at the meeting place. When proctors or security personnel help maintain order at the meeting place, they shall wear an identification card or armband bearing the word "Proctor" or identification cards.

At the place of a shareholders meeting, if a shareholder attempts to speak through any device other than the public address equipment set up by this Corporation, the chair may prevent the shareholder from so doing.

When a shareholder violates the rules of procedure and defies the chair's correction, obstructing the proceedings and refusing to heed calls to stop, the chair may direct the proceors or security personnel to escort the shareholder from the meeting..

- XXI. Any matters insufficiently provided for herein shall be subject to the Company Law, Articles of Incorporation and other laws and regulations concerned.
- XXII. These rules of procedure and amendments hereof come into enforcement after being resolved in the shareholders' meeting.